
From: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2024 12:23 PM 
To: Robert Hunter 
Cc: Pineda, Antonio 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ 

Maryneal Cement Plant 
Attachments: Updated OP-REQ1 Pages 1-2 11.15.2024.pdf 
 
Follow Up Flag: Follow up 
Flag Status: Flagged 
 

Dear Mr. Hunter,  

 

I apologize for being unable to get you the updated OP-REQ1 earlier in the week like I said on 

Friday, November 8, 2024. The document would just not work with me, so I had to get Antonio 

Pineda to update it. Please let me know if the document requires any further modification.  

 

I would like to mention that I was unable to void NSR Permit 5918A since it is listed as part of 

an open project. I am unaware of any open project regarding NSR Permit 5918A. Due to this 

though, how would you like to proceed?  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Friday, November 15, 2024 9:49 AM 
To: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Cc: Pineda, Antonio <Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement 
Plant 
 

This email originated from outside the Company. DO NOT CLICK ANY LINKS or OPEN ANY 

ATTACHMENTS unless you trust the sender. If you are not sure please contact the IT Helpdesk 

before proceeding.  

 
Good morning Hannah,  
 
When do you plan on submitting the updated OP-REQ1? Please let me know by COB today.  Please 
submit the updated OP-REQ1 form by or before 11/22/2024. 
 

mailto:Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com
mailto:Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com


Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application updates that 
are submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not require the submittal of an 
original signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that are provided through email or physical mail 
require certification using an original signature OP-CRO1. 
 
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and all 
application updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6 at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and to 
the TCEQ regional office having jurisdiction. This submittal information can be found on our 
website at Where to Submit FOP Applications and Permit-Related Documents. 
  
Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project schedule, or any other 
details regarding your application or permit. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Robert P. Hunter 
Title V Permit Reviewer 
TCEQ – APD – OP Section (Title V) 
(512) 239-1244 
 

 

 How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey 
at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

                
 
 
 

From: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2024 11:55 AM 
To: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov> 
Cc: Pineda, Antonio <Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement 
Plant 
 

Dear Mr. Hunter,  

 

That is perfect. Can we do Friday at 2:00PM? Thank you so much.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

mailto:R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flink.spamstopshere.net%2Fu%2F3799ab33%2FMiLAMHB37xGaeDYyh3soMg%3Fu%3Dhttps%253A%252F%252Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%252Fpermitting%252Fair%252Ftitlev%252Fsubmittal.html&data=05%7C02%7CRobert.Hunter%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cda55fb43313c441840c608dd05a27f5b%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638672918856154940%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=%2BWiuxsrrgVX6oIe8u%2B7ah%2F63akbPgqnXylvh8Wr1G4Q%3D&reserved=0
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flink.spamstopshere.net%2Fu%2F47842060%2FeoLuZmmj7xG_Qvw4BW1nPA%3Fu%3Dhttp%253A%252F%252Flinks.govdelivery.com%252Ftrack%253Ftype%253Dclick%2526enid%253DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%253D%253D%2526%2526%2526104%2526%2526%2526http%253A%252F%252Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%252Fgoto%252Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CRobert.Hunter%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cda55fb43313c441840c608dd05a27f5b%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638672918856180035%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=g21loGbUHb6U1oY%2F%2FuKKE1J6nd2kgLuthSKpicaMyfo%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com
mailto:Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov
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From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2024 10:00 AM 
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

 
Hey Hannah, 
 
I’m free Friday afternoon. How does that work? 
 
 
Regards, 
 
Robert Hunter (x1244) 
Title V Permit Reviewer 
 

From: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2024 9:56 AM 
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

 

Would you possibly be free on Friday, November 1, 2024?  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 30, 2024 8:50 AM 
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
 
Yes that sounds good. I am free tomorrow. What time works for you? 
 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, October 29, 2024 4:53 PM 
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
 

Good Evening, Mr. Hunter, 

 

Can we please schedule a call in regards to I.A.4, I.C.2, and I.C.3? I have some questions in 

regards to these statements that I think would just be easier to discuss over the phone. Thank 

you.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flink.spamstopshere.net%2Fu%2Fad06fb19%2FULchFcaW7xGGwRwmBW1nPA%3Fu%3Dhttp%253A%252F%252Flinks.govdelivery.com%252Ftrack%253Ftype%253Dclick%2526enid%253DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%253D%253D%2526%2526%2526104%2526%2526%2526http%253A%252F%252Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%252Fgoto%252Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CRobert.Hunter%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cda55fb43313c441840c608dd05a27f5b%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638672918856195193%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=lynoUn0Ol7HCFkO6XERuBNSCyd%2FMta5I5SuOlVrQJdc%3D&reserved=0
mailto:Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com
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From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, October 23, 2024 4:04 PM 
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

 
Hi Hannah,  
 
Please provide the necessary updates listed below by 10/30/2024: 
 

• It does not appear that all stationary vents are listed in the Applicable Requirements 
Summary Table. Would you like to add all of the vents on site? If not, please update your 
answer to I.A.4 on the OP-REQ1 and the Chapter 111 Special Term and Condition will be 
included in the permit, as it is in the current, effective permit.  

• For Section I.C on the OP-REQ1, I.C.2 and I.C.3 should be answered “NO” because there 
are no vents with additional monitoring requirements in the permit. Sorry for any confusion 
from my previous email.  

• To answer your final question, yes the HAPS placeholder will be changed to OPACITY.  
 
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
  
Thank you for your cooperation. 
  
 
Sincerely, 
 

Robert P. Hunter 
Title V Permit Reviewer  
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section 
MC-163, P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, TX  78711-3087 
robert.hunter@tceq.texas.gov 
 

mailto:Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov
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Phone: (512) 239-1244 
Fax:      (512) 239-1400 
 

 

 How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction 
survey at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

 
 
 
 

From: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com>  
Sent: Tuesday, October 1, 2024 5:54 PM 
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

 

After further review, I have the following questions/comments:  

 

• Based on my review, I do believe that the answer for I.A.4 should be “YES”. All 

opacities for stationary vents are addressed on a unit specific basis. Not all of them have a 

20% opacity due to being constructed after January 31, 1972. For instance, the finish 

mills have an opacity of 10%. Can you further explain why you believe this answer is 

incorrect?  

o I.C.3 was answered as “YES”, but I.C.4 was answered as “NO”. Did you mean 

I.A.3-I.A.4? If so, accepting the requirements of stationary vents constructed after 

January 31, 1972 for vents constructed on/before January 31, 1972, just means 

that the sources have an opacity of 20% instead of 30% which is what the plant 

goes by. Accepting the requirements of stationary vents constructed after January 

31, 1972, does not require them to have CAM or PM requirements.  

• After a thorough review of standard permit 122312 and NSR Permit 5918A, it has been 

determined that both of these permits need to be voided. Since the authorized 

representative for the plant nor I have voided an application before on STEERS, it might 

take the plant a few days to figure out how to void these said permits.  

• I am not exactly sure I understand this statement. Does this just mean that the HAPS 

placeholder will be changed to OPACITY?  

 

Thank you so much.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flink.spamstopshere.net%2Fu%2F12327f30%2F4C9ikoKR7xGQgvBUUabuwQ%3Fu%3Dhttp%253A%252F%252Flinks.govdelivery.com%252Ftrack%253Ftype%253Dclick%2526enid%253DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%253D%253D%2526%2526%2526104%2526%2526%2526http%253A%252F%252Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%252Fgoto%252Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CRobert.Hunter%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cda55fb43313c441840c608dd05a27f5b%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638672918856226906%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=a9q6CwlIhgofBDMOoVmOr0TUKHPUVBwJe%2FJnscD%2FecI%3D&reserved=0
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
Sent: Friday, September 20, 2024 11:48 AM 
To: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Cc: Pineda, Antonio <Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Subject: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement Plant 
 

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
 
After further review of the renewal application for Lone Star Industries, Inc., Maryneal Cement 
Plant, more information is required to complete the renewal application. Please provide the 
following information by 09/30/2024: 
 

• OP-REQ1 – Question I.A.4 was answered “YES” in the renewal application but it doesn’t 
appear that all of the vents on site have been submitted with unit-specific requirements. 
Please update your answer for I.A.4. 

o Questions I.C.3-4 were answered “YES” in the renewal application, but there are no 
vents with CAM or PM requirements. These should be answered “NO”. Please 
update your responses to questions I.C.3-4 and submit an updated OP-REQ1. 

• Standard Permit 122312 and NSR Permit 5918A are still active. Please void these permits or 
include them on OP-REQ1 page 87 and submit an updated copy.  

• The low-level citations from the current permit for MACT LLL will be carried over replacing 
the High level requirement. After the OP-REQ1 is updated, I will send an updated Working 
Draft Permit. 

 
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
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flink.spamstopshere.net%2Fu%2F3799ab33%2FMiLAMHB37xGaeDYyh3soMg%3Fu%3Dhttps%253A%252F%252Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%252Fpermitting%252Fair%252Ftitlev%252Fsubmittal.html&data=05%7C02%7CRobert.Hunter%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cda55fb43313c441840c608dd05a27f5b%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638672918856241266%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SkniyE9as1n%2BhiQNKNqBo0n%2FUgI%2FzEn9SX8zIOA48tE%3D&reserved=0


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

 
 
 
 
 
 

From: Robert Hunter  
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2024 4:06 PM 
To: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Cc: Pineda, Antonio <Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Subject: RE: OP-CRO1 - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement Plant 
 
Hey Hannah, 
 
Yes, the plant manager will need to sign a different OP-CRO1 and that is the one you will mail to 
me. 
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2024 4:05 PM 
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

 

Upon these updates to the permit/application for the Title V renewal, will the plant manager have 

to sign a different OP-CR01? If so, is that the one that I will be mailing to you?  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2024 3:58 PM 
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
 
Hold off on mailing the hardcopy for now. There are a few updates that need to be made to the 
permit/application before it is complete. I will request those items as soon possible. Thank you for 
your cooperation. 
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, September 19, 2024 3:51 PM 
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

 

Attached to this email is the OP-CR01 for the Title V Permit Renewal Revisions that was signed 

by the plant manager yesterday. I shall be mailing off the hardcopy with his ink signature today. 

Please let me know if you need anything else.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, September 12, 2024 10:06 AM 
To: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Cc: Pineda, Antonio <Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Subject: OP-CRO1 - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement Plant 
 

This email originated from outside the Company. DO NOT CLICK ANY LINKS or OPEN ANY 

ATTACHMENTS unless you trust the sender. If you are not sure please contact the IT Helpdesk 

before proceeding.  

 
Ms. Hannah Harris, 
 
Please submit form OP-CRO1 by 09/19/2024 to certify the updated forms submitted during the 
application process. A time period of 12/05/2023 to 08/23/2024 should be used to cover the 
information submitted during review and the Submittal Type should be marked: Update to Permit 
Application.  Please provide an electronic copy of the form followed by a hard copy.  Once the form is 
received the project will be reviewed by my management  and then the public notice package  will be 
sent out if there are no issues.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Robert P. Hunter 
Title V Permit Reviewer  
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section 
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Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Application Area-Wide Applicability Determinations and General Information 

Form OP-REQ1 
Federal Operating Permit Program 

TCEQ - 10043 (APDG 5733v46, Revised 11/20) OP-REQ1 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically. (Title V IMS Release 11/20) Page 1 of 88 

Date: May 2, 2023 

Permit No.: O1119 

RN No.: 100220847 

For SOP applications, answer ALL questions unless otherwise directed. 
 For GOP applications, answer ONLY these questions unless otherwise directed. 

Form OP-REQ1:  Page 1 

I. Title 30 TAC Chapter 111 - Control of Air Pollution from Visible Emissions and Particulate Matter 

A. Visible Emissions 

 1. The application area includes stationary vents constructed on or before 
January 31, 1972. 

YES NO 

 2. The application area includes stationary vents constructed after 
January 31, 1972. 
If the responses to Questions I.A.1 and I.A.2 are both “NO,” go to 
Question I.A.6. 
If the response to Question I.A.1 is “NO” and the response to Question I.A.2 is 
“YES,” go to Question I.A.4. 

YES NO 

 3. The application area is opting to comply with the requirements for stationary 
vents constructed after January 31, 1972 for vents in the application area 
constructed on or before January 31, 1972. 

YES NO 

 4. All stationary vents are addressed on a unit specific basis. YES NO 

 5. Test Method 9 (40 CFR Part 60, Appendix A, Method 9 - Visual Determination 
of the Opacity of Emissions from Stationary Sources) is used to determine 
opacity of emissions in the application area. 

YES NO 

 6. The application area includes structures subject to 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(7)(A). YES NO 

 7. The application area includes sources, other than those specified in 30 TAC 
§ 111.111(a)(1), (4), or (7), subject to 30 TAC § 111.111(a)(8)(A). 

YES NO 

 8. Emissions from units in the application area include contributions from 
uncombined water. 

YES NO 

 9. The application area is located in the City of El Paso, including Fort Bliss 
Military Reservation, and includes solid fuel heating devices subject to 30 TAC 
§ 111.111(c). 

YES NO 
 N/A 



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
may be revised periodically. (Title V IMS Release 11/20) Page 2 of 88 

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

Form OP-REQ1:  Page 2 

I. Title 30 TAC Chapter 111 - Control of Air Pollution from Visible Emissions and Particulate Matter 
(continued) 

B. Materials Handling, Construction, Roads, Streets, Alleys, and Parking Lots 

1. Items a - d determines applicability of any of these requirements based on geographical location. 

 a. The application area is located within the City of El Paso. YES NO 

 b. The application area is located within the Fort Bliss Military Reservation, 
except areas specified in 30 TAC § 111.141. 

YES NO 

 c. The application area is located in the portion of Harris County inside the 
loop formed by Beltway 8. 

YES NO 

 d. The application area is located in the area of Nueces County outlined in 
Group II state implementation plan (SIP) for inhalable particulate matter 
adopted by the TCEQ on May 13, 1988. 

YES NO 

If there is any “YES” response to Questions I.B.1.a - d, answers Questions I.B.2.a - d. If all responses 
to Questions I.B.1.a-d are “NO,” go to Section I.C. 

2. Items a - d determine the specific applicability of these requirements. 

 a. The application area is subject to 30 TAC § 111.143. YES NO 

 b. The application area is subject to 30 TAC § 111.145. YES NO 

 c. The application area is subject to 30 TAC § 111.147. YES NO 

 d. The application area is subject to 30 TAC § 111.149. YES NO 

C. Emissions Limits on Nonagricultural Processes 

 1. The application area includes a nonagricultural process subject to 30 TAC 
§ 111.151. 

YES NO 

2. The application area includes a vent from a nonagricultural process that is 
subject to additional monitoring requirements. 
If the response to Question I.C.2 is “NO,” go to Question I.C.4. 

YES NO 

3. All vents from nonagricultural process in the application area are subject to 
additional monitoring requirements. 

YES NO 



From: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Sent: Friday, August 23, 2024 5:04 PM 
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

 

Upon completing my review of the WDP final, I have no further comments.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, August 22, 2024 9:19 AM 
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
 
Yes, you may have until the end of the day on Friday, August 23. Thank you for letting me know. Let 
me know if you have any questions or concerns.  
 
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, August 21, 2024 5:30 PM 
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

 

Ever since coming back from bereavement for my grandfather, I have been trying to play catch 

up. Furthermore, I have had stack testing that has taken up the majority of my time over the last 

two weeks. Finally, I am starting to catch back up and I was hoping to go through the Title V 

permit tomorrow or Friday. I know that my boss has already gone through it again and has 

informed me that everything that needed to be removed was removed. Can you please just give 

me until the end of day on Friday, August 23 to just personally do a thorough check to make sure 

everything is correct? Thank you for your patience through this endeavor, Mr. Hunter.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Tuesday, August 20, 2024 2:26 PM 
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

 
Good afternoon Hannah, 
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Have you had a chance to review the Working Draft Permit(WDP)? Please let me know if you have 
any comments on the WDP, or when you will finish your review by COB tomorrow 08/21/2024. 
 
 
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
Sent: Friday, July 19, 2024 3:27 PM 
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

 

I understand that TCEQ has a certain time frame for getting permits out to facilities and I also 

understand that this permit is way past that timeframe. However, I have had an extraordinarily 

hard year. My grandfather died unexpectedly on Tuesday, July 16th and my mother has 

completely fallen apart. With that being said, my week has been a whirlwind since Tuesday and I 

have not had an opportunity to look at this final WDP. Would you mind extending the comment 

period? Thank you.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Friday, July 12, 2024 4:19 PM 
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
 
I have attached an updated copy of the WDP. When reviewing the WDP, please only review the 
removal of the emission units below. Please review the attached WDP and submit any comments you 
have by July 19, 2024.  
 
I am ok with the approach you ask about below. Let me know if you have any questions. Thank you 
for your cooperation. 
 
 
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
Sent: Friday, June 28, 2024 2:14 PM 
To: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov> 
Cc: Schell, Paul <Paul.Schell@Buzziunicemusa.com>; Pineda, Antonio 
<Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement 
Plant 
 

Dear Mr. Hunter,  
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I am deeply sorry about the long wait time. I was under the belief that I had already sent this to 

you. However, between training, stack testing, the TRI report, and the P2 report, the email must 

have gotten lost in the chaos. Please see the sources that the Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

would like to remove due to either being a duplicate, no longer existing, or never being built:  

 

1. A-28 Overland Conveyor Transfer to Raw Material Storage 

2. B-4 Raw Silo Elevator 

3. B-17 Raw Mill Conveying 

4. C-59 Bin #B – Main/Offspec Clinker or Limestone 

5. D-5 Westernmost Cement Silos 

6. D-6 East Cement Silos 

7. D-7 Westernmost Masonry Cement Silos 

8. D-36 West Cement Silos 

9. D-37 Westernmost Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530222 No. 1 

10. D-38 Westernmost Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530222 No. 2 

11. D-39 Westernmost Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530222 No. 3 

12. D-40 West Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530262 No. 1 

13. D-41 West Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530262 No. 2 

14. D-42 West Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530262 No. 3 

15. D-43 East Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530306 No. 1 

16. D-44 East Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530306 No. 2 

17. D-45 East Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530306 No. 3 

18. D-46 Westernmost Cement Silos Belt 530222 to Bucket Elevator 

19. D-47 West Cement Silos Belt 530262 to Bucket Elevator 

20. D-48 East Cement Silos Reclaim Belt 530306 to Buck Elevator 

21. E-4 No. 1 Packing 

22. E-5 No. 2 Packing 

23. E-6 No. 3 Packing 

24. E-7 No. 4 Packing 

25. G-20 Coal Return Belt Transfer Drop 

26. G-25 Carbon Black Silo 

 

Through the comparison of the new As-Built permit and the Title V permit, it was determined 

that a multitude of sources needed to be added to the Title V permit and that the naming of a 

multitude of sources had changed from one permit to the next. With that being said, once the 

new As-Built permit has been issued, the plant will do a minor modification to add sources, 

change names, and attached the new As-Built permit to the Title V permit. Are you alright with 

this approach?  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 



From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, June 27, 2024 2:10 PM 
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
 
Do you still plan on submitting a list of emission units that you would like removed from the FOP? 
Please provide an answer by COB tomorrow 06/28/2024. If you want to wait and remove the units 
in a minor revision, please let me know that you approve the WDP sent to you on May 20th.  
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 11:53 AM 
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

 

Upon further review of the WDP, I think a meeting to discuss the Title V permit would be 

helpful. Would you happen to have time for a meeting on Tuesday, May 28, 2024? Thank you so 

much.  
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
Sent: Monday, May 20, 2024 9:26 AM 
To: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Cc: Schell, Paul <Paul.Schell@Buzziunicemusa.com>; Pineda, Antonio 
<Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com> 
Subject: {Disarmed} RE: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ 
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
 
I have attached the WDP for review. Please let me know if you have any comments by 05/27/2024. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions. Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Robert P. Hunter 
Title V Permit Reviewer 
TCEQ – APD – OP Section (Title V) 
(512) 239-1244 
 

 

 How are we doing?  Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey 
at MailScanner has detected a possible fraud attempt from 
"links.govdelivery.com" claiming to be 
www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

                
 
 
 

From: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com>  
Sent: Thursday, May 16, 2024 2:37 PM 

mailto:Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov
mailto:Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com
mailto:Paul.Schell@Buzziunicemusa.com
mailto:Antonio.Pineda@buzziunicemusa.com
https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flink.spamstopshere.net%2Fu%2Fd1726b22%2FLI1u6rg07xGLB9sOXNGfSw%3Fu%3Dhttp%253A%252F%252Flinks.govdelivery.com%252Ftrack%253Ftype%253Dclick%2526enid%253DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%253D%253D%2526%2526%2526104%2526%2526%2526http%253A%252F%252Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%252Fgoto%252Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CRobert.Hunter%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cbe25841473e6407a3a0108dcc3bf7f5b%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638600476596890734%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=SvgVwiXiZCSih%2BQWkFEurISqIZz6TBBrOYnRbrjsXJQ%3D&reserved=0
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

 

Before filling out OP-UA15 to file G-26, G-27, and G-28, under Title 30 Part 1 Chapter 111.111, 

I went through the complete email correspondence between you, me, and Paul Schell. While 

going through this email chain, I came across a response from Paul Schell to you that stated, 

“Emission Units G-26, G-27, and G-28 have either been removed or were never 

constructed.  Therefore I have removed them from Form OP-UA64 (attached).” When I started 

investigating what these units were supposed to be controlling, I realized that Paul Schell was 

correct. G-26, G-27, and G-28, no longer or may have never existed. With all that being said, 

you were right to remove G-26, G-27, and G-28, from the Title V permit. Since these units do 

not belong in the Title V permit, can you please send out the WDP again for final review? Thank 

you so much.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, May 9, 2024 2:22 PM 
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
 
There is more information needed to complete my review. Please address the following items by 
05/16/2024.  
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• Emission units G-26, G-27, and G-28 were not submitted on any Unit Attribute (OP-UA) 
form/table that would give them 30 TAC Chapter 111 applicability. Please include these units on 
the appropriate OP-UA form and Table, if they are subject to Chapter 111.  

• The “112(B) HAPS” label for the pollutant is just a placeholder. In the future when our rule 
analysis is up to date, the pollutant will be labeled OPACITY again. The correct applicable 
requirements are still in the Permit and outlined in the Statement of Basis.  

 
Please let me know if you have any questions. Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
 
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
Sent: Thursday, April 4, 2024 7:14 PM 
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

 

Attached to this email is the OP-SUMR Table 2 for S-B-4, S-B-12, S-B-13, and S-B-14, as you 

requested.  

 

Can we please put G-26, G-27, and G-28, back into the permit under Title 30 Part 1 Chapter 

111.111?  

 

Thank you for the extra day to review the WDP. Upon review of this said document, I only have 

one further comment. In the Applicable Requirements Summary, can we please change the 
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pollutant on the SOP Index No. 63LLL to OPACITY instead of 112(B) HAPS for 

GRPALTFUEL, GRPBAG, GRPCARBON, GRPCLINK, GRPCOALML, GRPCOOLER, 

GRPFINMIL, GRPKLNFEED, GRPLOAD, GRPRAWMILL, GRPRAWSILO, 

GRPRAWSILO2, GRPSILO, GRPSILO23, GRPTRANSFR, S-C-85, S-C-86, and S-C-87?  

 

Thank you so much. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, March 27, 2024 5:50 PM 
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
 
Thank you for the supporting information and updated forms. Please submit an OP-SUMR Table 2, so we 
can document emission units S-B-4, S-B-12, S-B-13, and S-B-14 being added to emission group 
GRPRAWSILO. I have added them in for this WDP. I have removed G-26, G-27, and G-28 from the permit, 
since 60Y was the only applicable requirement they had.  
 
Please review the attached WDP and submit any comments you have by April 3, 2024.  
 
As required on Form OP-1, question IV.D, please remember the FOP application and all application 
updates must be submitted to EPA Region 6 at R6AirPermitsTX@epa.gov and to the TCEQ regional 
office having jurisdiction. This submittal information can be found on our website at Where to Submit 
FOP Applications and Permit-Related Documents. 
  
Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project schedule, or any other details 
regarding your application or permit. 
  
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
Sent: Wednesday, March 20, 2024 2:57 PM 
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
 

Good afternoon Mr. Hunter,  

 

The effective date on the cover letter of 82775 and PSDTX1101 is October 18th, 2019. The letter 

is dated October 23rd, 2019. Please see the attached for reference.  

 

Please find the OP-UA33 form for the RAWGRPSILO, which is the group that the emissions 

units S-B-4, S-B-12, S-B-13, and S-B-14 is a part of.  

 

Please find an updated OP-REQ1 form page 15.  

 

Emission units G-26, G-27, G-28 at the plant process pet coke and do not process coal. NSPS Y 

applies to coal processing and does not apply to pet coke. NSPS Y would not apply to the three 

sources since they do not handle or process coal. 

 

Please do not hesitate to reach out with any questions or concerns. 

 

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
Sent: Wednesday, March 6, 2024 10:52 AM 
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
 
Please address the following items by March 20, 2024. Once these discrepancies have been resolved, I 
will send an updated WDP. 
 

• Item 1: Our records indicate that 82775 and PSDTX1101 were renewed on October 23, 2019. 
Please submit an updated OP-REQ1 page 87 only with an updated issuance date.  

• Item 3: Please submit an OP-UA33 for emission units S-B-4, S-B-12, S-B-13, and S-B-14. These 
units were not included in the OP-UA33 submitted in the application. 

• Item 4: Please review your answers on the OP-REQ1 submitted in the renewal application. 
Specifically, Question IV.H.1 should be reviewed. Please submit an updated copy of OP-REQ1 
page 15.  

• Item 9: Please review the OP-UA64 form instructions for Table 1a and 1b and submit an updated 
copy. From my review, emission units G-26, G-27, and G-28 need an answer for PM Emission 
rate on Table 1b(page 2). Emission unit D-58 has been added back to the permit.  

 
Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
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
Sent: Friday, February 9, 2024 6:15 PM 
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
 

Dear Robert Hunter,  

 

I am sorry about submitting the comments to the draft report late. However, there was a 

multitude of comments/questions that the plant has about this said draft Title V permit. Please 

see those comments/questions below:  

 

1. In consideration of the Permit 82775 and PSDTX1101, the permits were renewed on 

October 18, 2019, and will expire on October 18, 2029. A Form OP-REQ1 with the 

permit renewal date has been attached to this email. However, an “as-built” application 

was originally submitted on April 7, 2023, for these permits, but a new permit has yet to 

be issued.  

2. In consideration of OP-PBRSUP, an updated form has been attached with the date 

changed.  

3. When it comes to emission units: B-4, B-12, B-13, and B-14, the intention was not to 

rename them. Since GRPRAWSILO includes B-4, B-12, B-13, and B-14, these emission 

untis were submitted on an UA33 under the group name of GRPRAWSILO. 

4. For the draft permit, Special Terms and Conditions #4 needs to be removed. The plant 

does not manufacture, distribute, sale, or install natural gas-fired water heaters, boilers, 

and process heaters, making this condition unnecessary. 

5. For GRPCLINK, GRPFINMILL, GRPKILNFEED, GRPRAWMILL, etc, the unit 

summary and applicable requirements summary only has to follow the regulations of 40 

CFR Part 60, Subpart F and excludes the regulation of 40 CFR Part 63, Subpart LLL, is 

there a reason for this? 

6. In the Applicable Requirements Summary, the GRPCOOLER PM should be 0.02 lb/ton 

clinker instead of 0.10 lb/ton of feed (dry bassis) to the kiln since it is a new clinker 

cooler.  

7. In the Applicable Requirements Summary, there should be no GRPCOOLER PM 

(Opacity) requirement due to 60.62(b)(1)(iv). This regulation states that the Clinker 

Coolers do not need an opacity limit if they have a PM limit due to having a PM 

continuous parametric monitoring system installed.  
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8. In the Applicable Requirements Summary, the GRPKILN PM should be 0.02 lb/ton 

clinker instead of 0.01 lb/ton clinker. Furthermore, this is not calculated through a 30-day 

rolling average, but 3 1-hr stack testing runs.  

9. Why has G-26, G-27, and G-28, been removed from the Unit Summary, Applicable 

Requirements Summary, and New Source Review Authorization References by 

Emissions Unit table? Why has D-58 been removed from the New Sources Review 

Authorization References by Emissions Unit table?  

 

If you have any questions, comments, or concerns, please let me know as soon as possible.  

 

Sincerely,  
 

Hannah Harris 

Environmental Engineer 

Buzzi Unicem USA: Maryneal Plant 

Office: 325-842-7365 

Mobile: 325-236-4271 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Wednesday, January 24, 2024 12:33 PM 
To: Schell, Paul <Paul.Schell@Buzziunicemusa.com> 
Cc: Harris, Hannah <Hannah.Harris@buzziunicemusa.com>; Ferguson, Michelle 
<Michelle.Ferguson@buzziunicemusa.com> 
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

 
Mr. Paul Schell, 
 
I have conducted a technical review of renewal application for Lone Star Industries, Inc., Maryneal Cement 
Plant. An electronic copy of the Working Draft Permit (WDP) is attached for your review.  This WDP 
contains the TCEQ determination of applicable requirements based on the information submitted in your 
application, and any updates provided.  
  
Please review the WDP and submit to me any comments you have on the working draft 
permit by  February 7, 2024 . Please submit a written response by this deadline, even if you are not 
making any comments on the content of the WDP.  Please also address the following items: 
 

• OP-REQ1 (Page 87 only) – Would you like to incorporate a more recent issuance date for NSR 
Permits 82775 and PSDTX1101? If so, please update the issuance dates on OP-REQ1, page 87.  

• OP-PBRSUP – In the Header please enter a specific date rather than just Month/Year. For example 
– May 9, 2023. Please submit the full OP-PBRSUP with the updated Header.  
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• Emission units B-4, B-13, B-13, and B-14 were renamed S-B-4, S-B-12, S-B-13, and S-B-14 
respectively. If this was not what you intended, please submit S-B-4, S-B-12, S-B-13, and S-B-14 
on a UA form or OP-REQ2.  

  
  
Please review the second portion of the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located 
at https://link.spamstopshere.net/u/411aae8b/jpdw6rg07xGLB9sOXNGfSw?u=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.tc
eq.texas.gov%2Fassets%2Fpublic%2Fpermitting%2Fair%2FGuidance%2FTitle_V%2Fsop_wdp_factsheet.
pdf. This guidance contains important information regarding WDP review and comment procedures.  
  
Note that a Certification by Responsible Official (Form OP-CRO1) for any uncertified application 
information, including application updates supporting the WDP comments, is required.   After final review 
of the WDP, additional changes supported by application updates may require certification.  I will advise 
you of these changes at a later date.  Prior to transmittal of the Public Notice/Announcement 
Authorization Package, a duly signed OP-CRO1 form may be required which includes the specific dates or 
time-period of all submitted application documentation that was not previously certified.  I will advise you 
of this requirement prior to sending the Public Notice/Announcement Authorization. 
  
Application updates may now be submitted through Title V STEERS. Any application updates that are 
submitted by the RO/DAR through STEERS are certified and do not require the submittal of an original 
signature OP-CRO1. Application updates that are provided through email or physical mail require 
certification using an original signature OP-CRO1. 
  
Please notify me when these updates have been submitted. 
  
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

 
 
 
 

From: Schell, Paul <Paul.Schell@Buzziunicemusa.com>  
Sent: Friday, December 8, 2023 9:11 AM 
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
 
Attached is the updated form OP-UA64.  Let me know if you need anything else. 
 
Paul 
 
Paul T. Schell 
Corporate Environmental Manager 
Buzzi Unicem USA 
1000 River Cement Road 
Festus, MO 63028 
(636) 931-2536 (office) 
(573) 450-8612 (mobile) 
 

From: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov>  
Sent: Thursday, December 7, 2023 4:49 PM 
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

 
Good afternoon Paul, 
 
For emission group GRPCOALNEW on page 1 of the OP-UA64, please provide a unit attribute for 
“Control Device” and “Digital Opacity” and submit an updated copy by 12/14/2023. 
 

https://nam11.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flink.spamstopshere.net%2Fu%2Fd1726b22%2FLI1u6rg07xGLB9sOXNGfSw%3Fu%3Dhttp%253A%252F%252Flinks.govdelivery.com%252Ftrack%253Ftype%253Dclick%2526enid%253DZWFzPTEmbWFpbGluZ2lkPTIwMTgxMTAyLjk3MDg5MTgxJm1lc3NhZ2VpZD1NREItUFJELUJVTC0yMDE4MTEwMi45NzA4OTE4MSZkYXRhYmFzZWlkPTEwMDEmc2VyaWFsPTE3MzIwMjU1JmVtYWlsaWQ9ZGlhbm5lLmFuZGVyc29uQHRjZXEudGV4YXMuZ292JnVzZXJpZD1kaWFubmUuYW5kZXJzb25AdGNlcS50ZXhhcy5nb3YmZmw9JmV4dHJhPU11bHRpdmFyaWF0ZUlkPSYmJg%253D%253D%2526%2526%2526104%2526%2526%2526http%253A%252F%252Fwww.tceq.texas.gov%252Fgoto%252Fcustomersurvey&data=05%7C02%7CRobert.Hunter%40tceq.texas.gov%7Cbe25841473e6407a3a0108dcc3bf7f5b%7C871a83a4a1ce4b7a81563bcd93a08fba%7C0%7C0%7C638600476596938268%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=8VK55sHwk5af%2BODDXVKMRansydsCOWc0Z6a24ufbkHQ%3D&reserved=0
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
mailto:Michelle.Ferguson@buzziunicemusa.com
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
survey at MailScanner has detected a possible fraud attempt 
from "links.govdelivery.com" claiming to be 
www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

 
 
 
 

From: Schell, Paul <Paul.Schell@Buzziunicemusa.com>  
Sent: Thursday, December 7, 2023 1:03 PM 
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
 
Mr. Hunter, 
Attached are the requested forms.  I completed OP-MON for GRPCOAL1 and GRPCOALNEW since an OP-
MON for GRPCOAL2 was already completed. Emission Units G-26, G-27, and G-28 have either been 
removed or were never constructed.  Therefore I have removed them from Form OP-UA64 (attached). 
 
I want to clarify something on the OP-MON form for GRPCOAL1, GRPCOAL2, and GRPCOALNEW for 
Subpart Y. The Maryneal plant has never processed coal with this equipment only petroleum coke and 
Subpart Y doesn’t apply when the equipment is processing petroleum coke.  This rule only applies to 
coal handling equipment.  This is why the Periodic Monitoring Text for GRPCOAL1, CRPCOAL2, and 
GRPCOALNEW says “When coal is being processed…”.  While pet coke is being processed, the 
equipment is only subject to the state opacity regulation.  As such, does Buzzi need to submit another 
form OP-MON to describe the periodic monitoring that will be done to demonstrate compliance with 
the state opacity limit? 
 
I reviewed the TCEQ Guidance Document on Periodic Monitoring.  It states , “An emission unit requires 
periodic monitoring if the emission limitation or standard that the unit is subject to does not specify 
periodic monitoring (which may consist of recordkeeping) that is sufficient to yield reliable data from a 
relevant time period that is representative of the emission unit’s compliance with the applicable 
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requirement…”.  Emission Units A-26 and A-27 are subject to NSPS Subpart OOO.  Subpart OOO 
§60.674(c) states, “the owner or operator of any affected facility for which construction, modification, or 
reconstruction commenced on or after April 22, 2008, that uses a baghouse to control emissions must 
conduct quarterly 30-minute visible emissions inspections using EPA Method 22 (40 CFR part 60, 
appendix A-7). The Method 22 (40 CFR part 60, appendix A-7) test shall be conducted while the 
baghouse is operating. The test is successful if no visible emissions are observed. If any visible emissions 
are observed, the owner or operator of the affected facility must initiate corrective action within 24 
hours to return the baghouse to normal operation.”  Buzzi believes this is adequate to document 
compliance with the applicable standard.  As such, we don’t believe Form OP-MON is required for 
Emission Units A-26 and A-27.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 
Thanks, 
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
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 2:26 PM 
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

 
Hey Mr. Schell, 
 
I found the OP-MON for GRPCOAL2 in the application so an additional one is not needed.  
 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 1:02 PM 
To: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement 
Plant 
 
It looks like we submitted a from OP-MON for GRPCOAL2 with the original application.  Did you mean 
GRPCOALNEW?   
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 10:10 AM 
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

 
Mr. Schell, 
 
Please submit form OP-MON for emission group GRPCOAL 2(Index no. 60Y) for Periodic Monitoring for 
PM Opacity under Main Standard 40 CFR Part 60, Subpart Y 60.254(a) and an OP-MON for emission units 
A-26 and A-27(Index no. 60OOO) for Periodic Monitoring for PM under Main Standard 40 CFR Part 60, 
Subpart OOO 60.672(a)- Table 2. Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, December 5, 2023 9:53 AM 
To: Robert Hunter <Robert.Hunter@tceq.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement 
Plant 
 
Mr. Hunter, 
I’m unsure what you’re requesting in bullet items 2 and 3 below.  They appear to be statements rather 
than requests for information.  Is this just a comment, or do you need something related to these? 
 
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
Sent: Monday, December 4, 2023 12:55 PM 
To: Schell, Paul <paul.schell@buzziunicemusa.com> 
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
 
What is the status of the items requested below? Please provide a response by 12/08/2023. 
 
 
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
 
 
 

 

Links contained in this email have been replaced. If you click on a link in the 
email above, the link will be analyzed for known threats. If a known threat is 
found, you will not be able to proceed to the destination. If suspicious content is 
detected, you will see a warning. 
 

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
Sent: Wednesday, October 11, 2023 11:50 AM 
To: hannah.harris@buzziunicmusa.com; paul.schell@buzziunicemusa.com 
Subject: Technical Review - FOP O1119/Project 35134 Lone Star Industries, Inc./ 

Maryneal Cement Plant 
 
Hello Ms. Hannah Harris and Mr. Paul T. Schell, 
 

I have been assigned to the Federal Operating Permit (FOP) renewal permit application of 
Permit No. O1119 for Lone Star Industries, Inc./ Maryneal Cement Plant. This application has 
been assigned Project No. 35134. Please address all correspondence pertaining to this permit 
application, including any updates, to me at the address below, and use both the Permit and 
Project reference numbers above to facilitate tracking. Please let me know if you one or both of 
you should be the technical contact(s) for this project.  
 
Please review the “SOP Technical Review Fact Sheet” located at 
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsheet.
pdf. This guidance contains important information regarding the review process and application 
update procedures.  Contact me if you have any questions regarding the guidelines, the project 
schedule, or any other details regarding your application or permit. 
 
In addition, I wanted to let you know that EPA has, on occasion, objected to Title V permits 
based on the following:  

a.    NSR permit and PBR monitoring sufficiency –please refer to our periodic 
monitoring guidance for reference of monitoring that EPA has, so far, considered 
sufficient. 

b.    Reference to confidential business information (CBI) in NSR permits and PBR 
submittals. 

c.    High level terms in the SOP Applicable Requirement Summary Table. The high 
level terms are sometimes used in SOPs when unit attribute forms have not yet 
been updated due to regulatory amendments. 

d.    Accuracy of PBR information provided on the supplemental table and in the 
permit – please refer to Forms OP-PBRSUP and OP-REQ1 Instructions. 

If you have any questions or concerns on any of these items or think you need to do any 
additional updates, let me know and we can discuss further. 
 
Thank you for your cooperation. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Robert P. Hunter 
Title V Permit Reviewer  
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality  
OA/Air Permits Division/OP Section 

http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/sop_wdp_factsheet.pdf
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
Form OP-UA64 - Instructions 

Coal Preparation Plant Attributes 

General: 

This form is used to provide a description and data pertaining to all coal preparation plants with potentially applicable 
requirements associated with a particular regulated entity number and application. Each table number, along with the 
possibility of a corresponding letter (i.e., Table 1a, Table 1b), corresponds to a certain state or federal rule. If the rule on 
the table is not potentially applicable to a coal preparation plant then it should be left blank and need not be submitted 
with the application. If the codes entered by the applicant show negative applicability to the rule or sections of the rule 
represented on the table, then the applicant need not complete the remainder of the table(s) that corresponds to the rule. 
Further instruction as to which questions should be answered and which questions should not be answered are located in 
the “Specific” section of the instruction text. The following is included in this form: 

Tables 1a-1b: Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 
Subpart Y:  Standards of Performance for Coal Preparation Plants 

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) Regulated Entity Number (RNXXXXXXXXX) and the 
application area name from Form OP-1 (Site Information Summary) must appear in the header of each page for the 
purpose of identification for the initial submittal. The date of the initial form submittal must also be included and should 
be consistent throughout the application (MM/DD/YYYY). Leave the permit number blank for the initial form submittal. 
If this form is included as part of the permit revision process, enter the permit number assigned by the TCEQ, the area 
name (from Form OP-1), the date of the revision submittal, and the regulated entity number. 

Unit attribute questions that do not require a response from all applicants are preceded by qualification criteria in the 
instructions. If the unit does not meet the qualification criteria, a response to the question is not required. Anytime a 
response is not required based on the qualification criteria, leave the space on the form blank. 

Notwithstanding any qualification criteria in the form instructions or information provided in other TCEQ 
guidance, the applicant may leave an attribute question blank (or indicate “N/A” for “Not Applicable”) if the 
attribute is not needed for the applicable requirement determinations of a regulation for a unit. 

In some situations, the applicant has the option of selecting alternate requirements, limitations, and/or practices for a unit. 
Note that these alternate requirements, limitations, and/or practices must have the required approval from the TCEQ 
Executive Director and/or the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Administrator before the federal operating 
permit application is submitted. 

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) requires that a Core Data Form be submitted on all incoming 
registrations unless all of the following are met: the Regulated Entity and Customer Reference Numbers have been issued 
by the TCEQ and no core data information has changed. The Central Registry, a common record area of the TCEQ, 
maintains information about TCEQ customers and regulated activities, such as company names, addresses, and telephone 
numbers. This information is commonly referred to as “core data.” The Central Registry provides the regulated 
community with a central access point within the agency to check core data and make changes when necessary. When 
core data about a facility is moved to the Central Registry, two new identification numbers are assigned:  the Customer 
Reference (CN) number and the Regulated Entity (RN) number. The Core Data Form is required if facility records are not 
yet part of the 
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Central Registry or if core data for a facility has changed. If this is the initial registration, permit, or license for a facility 
site, then the Core Data Form must be completed and submitted with application or registration forms. If amending, 
modifying, or otherwise updating an existing record for a facility site, the Core Data Form is not required, unless any core 
data information has changed. To review additional information regarding the Central Registry, go to the TCEQ Web site 
at www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/central_registry. 
 

Specific: 

Table 1a: Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 
Subpart Y:  Standards of Performance for Coal Preparation Plants 

 Complete this table only for the following affected facilities at a coal preparation plant with a design capacity 
greater than 200 tons of coal per day: thermal dryers, pneumatic coal-cleaning equipment (air tables), and 
coal processing and conveying equipment (including breakers and crushers), coal storage systems, coal 
transfer and loading systems or mechanical vents. 

Note:  For more information about actual processing or design capacity, refer to the TCEQ Rule Interpretation 
Number 60Y.001. 

 DO NOT complete this table if the plant chooses the option to operate under a federally enforceable limit of 
less than 200 tons per day. 

 DO NOT complete this table for open storage piles. Complete the form OP-REQ1. 

Unit ID No.:  
Enter the identification number (ID No.) for the coal preparation equipment (maximum 10 characters) as listed on Form 
OP-SUM (Individual Unit Summary). 

Note:  Affected facilities may be grouped or aggregated as processes in Table 1a. Unit identification numbers should be 
listed in Table 1a, even if no other responses are required. 

SOP Index No.: 
Site operating permit (SOP) applicants should indicate the SOP index number for the unit or group of units 
(maximum 15 characters consisting of numeric, alphanumeric characters, and/or dashes prefixed by a code for the 
applicable regulation [i.e., 60KB-XXXX]). For additional information relating to SOP index numbers, please refer to the 
TCEQ website at www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/additional_fop_guidance.pdf. 

 Continue only if “Federally Enforceable Limit Option” is “NO.” 

Affected Facility:  
Select one of the following options for the affected facility describing the unit. Enter the code on the form. 

Code Description 
THMDRY Thermal dryers 
PNMCLN Pneumatic coal-cleaning equipment (air tables) 
CLSYST Coal processing and conveying equipment (including breakers and crushers), coal storage 

systems (excluding open storage piles), or coal transfer and loading systems 
MECHVNT Mechanical Vent 

http://www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/central_registry
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Rules/Federal/60/y/rimtoc.pdf
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/assets/public/permitting/air/Guidance/Title_V/additional_fop_guidance.pdf
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 Complete “Covered Under Another Subpart” only if “Affected Facility” is “THMDRY.” 

Covered Under Another Subpart:   

Enter “YES” if the thermal dryers are receiving all of their thermal input from an affected facility covered under another 
40 CFR Part 60 subpart. Otherwise, enter “NO.” 

Construction/Reconstruction/Modification Date:   

Select one of the following options that describe the date of commencement of the most recent construction, 
reconstruction, or modification for any of the affected facilities. Enter the code on the form. 

Thermal Dryers 

Code Description 
74- On or before October 24, 1974 
74-08 After October 24, 1974 and before April 28, 2008 
C08-09 Constructed after April 28, 2008 and before May 27, 2009 
R08-09 Reconstructed after April 28, 2008 and before May 27, 2009 
M08-09 Modified after April 28, 2008 and before May 27, 2009 
C09+ Constructed after May 27, 2009 
R09+ Reconstructed after May 27, 2009 
M09+ Modified after May 27, 2009 

Pneumatic coal-cleaning equipment (air tables), coal processing and conveying equipment (including breakers 
and crushers), coal storage systems (excluding open storage piles), coal transfer and loading systems, or 
mechanical vent 

Code Description 
74- On or before October 24, 1974 
74-08 After October 24, 1974 and before April 28, 2008 
C08+ Constructed after April 28, 2008 
R08+ Reconstructed after April 28, 2008 
M08+ Modified after April 28, 2008 

 Do Not Continue if “Affected Facility” is “THMDRY, PNMCLN, or CLSYST” and “ 
Construction/Reconstruction/Modification Date” is “74-” or “Affected Facility” is “MECHVNT” and 
“Construction/Reconstructed/Modification Date” is “74- or 74-08” 

 Do not complete “Control Device Type” if “Affected Facility” is “PNMCLN or CLSYST” and 
“Construction/Modification Date” is “74-08.” 

Control Device Type: 
Select one of the following options to describe if the unit uses a control device. Enter the code on the form.  

Thermal Dryers, Pneumatic coal-cleaning equipment (air tables) or Coal processing and conveying equipment 
(including breakers and crushers), coal storage systems (excluding open storage piles), or coal transfer and 
loading systems 

Code Description 
BLDS Emissions are controlled by a bag leak detection system complying with the requirements in 

§60.256(c) 
WTSCR Emissions are controlled by a wet scrubber 
OTH Emissions are controlled by control equipment other than a wet scrubber 
NONE Emissions are not controlled by a control device 
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Mechanical Vents 

Code Description 
FABFLT Emissions are controlled by a fabric filter with a design controlled PM emission of 25 Mg 

(28 tons) per year or more with a bag leak detection system complying with the requirements in 
§60.256(c) 

WTSCR Emissions are controlled by a wet scrubber 
OTH Emissions are controlled by control equipment other than a wet scrubber 

Control Device ID No.:   

Enter the identification number (ID No.) for the control device to which emissions are routed (maximum 10 characters). 
This number should be consistent with the control device identification number listed on Form OP-SUM. If there is no 
control device, then leave this column blank. 

 Do not complete “COMPLIANCE OPTION” if “Affected Facility” is “MECHVNT.” 

Compliance Option: 
Select one of the following options that describes which monitoring option the affected facility is using. Enter the code on 
the form. 

Code Description 
255F Affected facility electing to comply with the requirements of §60.255(f)(1) or §60.255(f)(2)  
255G Affected facility using a COMS to comply with the requirements of §60.255(g)(1) or 

§60.255(g)(2)  
255B2 Affected facility is complying with §60.255(b)(2) 

 Do not complete “Digital Opacity” if “Affected Facility” is “MECHVNT.” 

Digital Opacity: 

Enter “YES” if the affected facility is using a monitoring plan for a digital opacity compliance system. Otherwise, enter 
“NO.” 

  

Table 1b: Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 
Subpart Y:  Standard of Performance for Coal Preparation Plants 

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


OP-UA64 Instructions 
 

TCEQ-20803 (APDG 6417v1, Revised 10/17) OP-UA64 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 10/17) Page 5 of 6 

 Complete “Thermal Input of SO2” if “Affected Facility” is “THMDRY” and “Construction/Modification 
Date” is “C09+, R09+, or M09+.” 

Thermal Input of SO2:   

Enter “YES” if the thermal dryers are receiving all of their thermal input from a source other than coal or residual oil, or 
receive all of their thermal input from a source subject to an SO2 limit under another subpart of 40 CFR Part 60, or that 
use waste heat or residual from the combustion of coal or residual oil as their only input. Otherwise, enter “NO.” 

 Complete “Comply with §60.252(b)(2)(i)” if “Thermal Input of SO2” is NO. 

Comply with §60.252(b)(2)(i): 
Enter “YES” if the thermal dryer is comply with the emission limitation of §60.252(b)(2)(i). Otherwise, enter “NO.” 

 Complete “Thermal Input of NOx/CO” if “Affected Facility” is “THMDRY” and 
“Construction/Modification Date” is “C09+, R09+, M09+.” 

Thermal Input of NOx/CO:  
Enter “YES” if the thermal dryers are receiving all of their thermal input from a source other than coal or residual oil, or 
receive all of their thermal input from a source subject to a NOx limit and/or CO limit under another subpart of 40 CFR 
Part 60, or that use waste heat or residual from the combustion of coal or residual oil as their only input. Otherwise, enter 
“NO.” 

 Complete “PM Emission Rate” if “Affected Facility” is “PNMCLN or MECHVNT” and 
“Construction/Modification Date” is “C08+, R08+, or M08+.” 

PM Emission Rate: 
Enter “YES” if the control device used is with a PM emission rate of 1.0 Mg (1.1 tons) per year or less and meets the 
requirements of §60.255(d)(1)-(3). Otherwise, enter “NO.” 

 



 
 

TCEQ 20803 (APDG 6417v1, Revised 10/17) OP-UA64 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 10/17) Page __1__ of __1__ 
 

Coal Preparation Plant Attributes 
Form OP-UA64 (Page 1) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
 

Table 1a:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 
Subpart Y:  Standards of Performance for Coals Preparation Plants 

 

Date:  December 8, 2023 Permit No.:  O1119 Regulated Entity No.:  100220847 

Area Name:  Maryneal Cement Plant Customer Reference No.:  600363683 

 

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. Affected 
Facility 

Covered Under 
Another 
Subpart 

Construction/ 
Reconstruction/Modi

fication Date 

Control 
Device 
Type 

Control 
Device ID 

No. 

Compliance 
Option 

Digital 
Opacity 

GRPCOAL1 60Y CLSYST  74-08     

GRPCOALNEW 60Y CLSYST  C08+ OTH C-G-29 & 
C-G-30 

255B2 NO 

GRPCOAL2 60Y MECHVNT  74-08     

         

         

         

         

         

         

         



 

TCEQ 20803 (APDG 6417v1, Revised 10/17) OP-UA64 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and 
may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 10/17) Page ____ of ____ 
 

Coal Preparation Plant Attributes 
Form OP-UA64 (Page 2) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 1b:  Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 CFR Part 60) 

Subpart Y:  Standards of Performance for Coals Preparation Plants 
 

Date:  Permit No.:  Regulated Entity No.:  

Area Name:  Customer Reference No.:  

 

Unit ID No. SOP Index No. Thermal Input of 
SO2 

Comply with 
§60.252(b)(2)(i) 

Thermal Input of 
NOx/CO 

PM Emission 
Rate 

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

      

 



 

TCEQ-10421 (APDG 5234v8, Revised12/17) OP-MON 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __1___ of __4___  

 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Monitoring Requirements 
Form OP-MON (Page 3) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 1c:  CAM/PM Case-By-Case Additions 

 
I. Identifying Information 
Account No.:  ND-0014-S RN No.: 100220847 CN: 600363683 

Permit No:  O1119 Project No.: Not Applicable 

Area Name:  Maryneal Cement Plant 

Company Name:  Lone Star Industries, Inc. dba Buzzi Unicem USA 

II. Unit/Emission Point/Group/Process Information 

Revision No.:  10 

Unit/EPN/Group/Process ID No.: GRPCOAL1 

Applicable Form:  UA64 

III. Applicable Regulatory Requirement 
Name: NSPS Subpart Y 

SOP/GOP Index No.: 60Y1 

Pollutant: PM (Opacity) 

Main Standard: 60.254(a) 

Monitoring Type: PM 

Unit Size: 

Deviation Limit:  Opacity greater than 20% 

IV. Control Device Information 

Control Device ID No.: 

Device Type: 

V. CAM Case-by-case 

Indicator: 

Minimum Frequency: 

Averaging Period: 

QA/QC Procedures: 

Verification Procedures: 

Representative Date: 

VI. Periodic Monitoring Case-by-case 
Indicator: Opacity Minimum Frequency: Once per month 

Averaging Period: Six-minutes 



 

TCEQ-10421 (APDG 5234v8, Revised 12/17) OP-MON 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __2___ of __4___  

I. Identifying Information 
Periodic Monitoring Text: When coal is being processed, opacity shall be monitored, by a certified observer, 

for at least one, six-minute period in accordance with Title 40 Code of Federal Regulations Part 60 (40 
CFR Part 60), Appendix A, Test Method 9. Any opacity readings above the deviation limit shall be 
reported as a deviation. 

  



 

TCEQ-10421 (APDG 5234v8, Revised 12/17) OP-MON 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __3___ of __4___  

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

Unit/EPN/Group/Process ID No.: GRPCOAL2 

Applicable Form:  UA64 

III. Applicable Regulatory Requirement 
Name: NSPS Subpart Y 

SOP/GOP Index No.: 60Y2 

Pollutant: PM (Opacity) 

Main Standard: 60.254(a) 

Monitoring Type: PM 

Unit Size: 

Deviation Limit:  Opacity greater than 20% 

IV. Control Device Information 

Control Device ID No.: C-G-2 & C-G-3 

Device Type: FABFLT 

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
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __4___ of __4___  

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
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __5___ of __4___  

 
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

Unit/EPN/Group/Process ID No.: GRPCOALNEW 

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
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __6___ of __4___  

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
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __7___ of __4___  

 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Monitoring Requirements 
Form OP-MON (Page 4) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 1d:  CAM/PM Case-By-Case Control Device Additions 

 
Emission Unit ID No. Control Device ID No. Control Device Type 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

  



 

TCEQ-10421 (APDG 5234v8, Revised 12/17) OP-MON 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __8___ of __4___  

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Monitoring Requirements 
Form OP-MON (Page 5) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 2a:  CAM/PM Deletions 

I. Identifying Information 
Account No.: 

RN No.: 

CN: 

Permit No.: 

Project No.: 

Area Name: 

Company Name: 

II. Unit/Emission Point/Group/Process Information 
Revision No.: 

Unit/EPN/Group/Process ID No.: 

Applicable Form: 

III. Applicable Regulatory Requirement 
Name: 

SOP/GOP Index No.: 

Pollutant: 

Main Standard: 

IV. Title V Monitoring Information 
Monitoring Type: 

CAM/PM Option No.: 

V. Control Device Information 
Control Device ID No.: 

Control Device Type: 

VI. Type of Deletion 
Monitoring Requirement: 

Control Device: 

  



 

TCEQ-10421 (APDG 5234v8, Revised 12/17) OP-MON 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __9___ of __4___  

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Monitoring Requirements 
Form OP-MON (Page 6) 

Table 2b:  CAM/PM Control Device Deletions 

Emission Unit ID No. Control Device ID No. Control Device Type 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   



 

TCEQ-10421 (APDG 5234v8, Revised 12/17) OP-MON 
This form is for use by facilities subject to air quality permit 
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __10___ of __4___  

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Monitoring Requirements 
Form OP-MON (Page 7) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 2c:  CAM/PM Case-By-Case Deletions 

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
requirements and may be revised periodically. (Title V Release 11/04) Page __11___ of __4___  

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Monitoring Requirements 
Form OP-MON (Page 8) 

Federal Operating Permit Program 
Table 2d:  CAM/PM Case-By-Case Device Deletions 

Emission Unit ID NO. Control Device ID No. Control Device Type 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 



 

TCEQ-20875 (APDG6535v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page__1___ of ___4___ 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 1) 
Table A: Registered Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

May 2, 2023 O1119 RN100220847 

 
Unit ID No. Registration No. PBR No. Registration Date 

S-C-85, S-C-86, S-C-87  170877 106.261 12/02/2022 

S23-DC3, S17-DC1, S23-DC1, S23-DC2 
(GRPSILO23) 

171059 106.144 12/14/2022 

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

    

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APDG6535v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page __2___ of __4___ 
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 2) 
Table B: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

May 2, 2023 O1119 RN100220847 

 
Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date 

L-53 (Quarry Vehicle Diesel Tank) 106.478 03/14/1997 

L-54 (Quarry Vehicle Tank Fueling) 106.473 03/14/1997 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APDG6535v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page __3___ of __4___ 
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 3) 
Table C: Claimed (not registered) Permits by Rule (30 TAC Chapter 106) for Insignificant Sources for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 
Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

May 2, 2023 O1119 RN100220847 

 
PBR No. Version No./Date 

106.102 (Comfort Heating) 11/15/1996 

106.472 (Organic and Inorganic Liquid Loading and Unloading) 03/14/1997 

106.227 (Soldering, Brazing, Welding) 03/14/1997 

106.263 (Enclosed Outdoor Dry Abrasive Blasting and Maintenance Painting) 11/01/2001 

106.265 (Handheld and Manually Operated Machines used for buffing, polishing, 
carving, cutting, drilling, machining, routing, sanding, sawing, surface grinding, etc.) 

03/14/1997 

106.371 (Cooling-Water Units) 03/14/1997 

106.454 (Degreasing Units) 03/14/1997 

106.511 (Portable and Emergency Engines and Turbines) 03/14/1997 

106.532 (Sludge Management) 03/14/1997 

106.532 (Organic chemical usage for water treatment) 03/14/1997 

  

 
  



 

TCEQ-20875 (APDG6535v1, revised 05/22) OP-PBRSUP 
This form for use by facilities subject to air quality permit requirements and  
may be revised periodically (Title V IMS Release 05/20) Page __4___ of __4___ 
 

Permit By Rule Supplemental Table (Page 4) 
Table D: Monitoring Requirements for registered and claimed PBRs for the Application Area 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

Date Permit Number Regulated Entity Number 

May 2, 2023 O1119 RN100220847 

 
Unit ID No. PBR No. Version No./Date Or 

Registration No. 
Monitoring Requirement 

S-C-85, S-C-86, S-C-87  106.261 170877(12/02/2022) Recordkeeping of operations sufficient for calculating emissions on an annual basis. 

S23-DC3, S17-DC1,  
S23-DC1, S23-DC2  
(Group GRPSILO23) 

106.144 171059(12/14/2022) Recordkeeping of operations sufficient for calculating emissions on an annual basis. 

L-53 (Quarry Vehicle 
Diesel Tank) 

106.478 03/14/1997 Recordkeeping of operations sufficient for calculating emissions on an annual basis. 

L-54 (Quarry Vehicle Tank 
Fueling) 

106.473 03/14/1997 Recordkeeping of operations sufficient for calculating emissions on an annual basis. 
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